
 

Molalla City Council 
Meeting located at: 

Molalla Adult Community Center 
315 Kennel Avenue 
Molalla, OR  97038 

 
October 10, 2012 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

 
 

Work session: 6:30 p.m.The Council will review and discuss agenda items for the business meeting. 
 
Business meeting: The meeting will begin at 7 p.m.  The Council has adopted Public Participation 
Rules. Copies of these rules and public comment cards are available at the entry desk. Public comment 
cards must be turned into to the City Recorder prior to the start of the Council meeting. 
 
The City will endeavor to provide a qualified bilingual interpreter, at no cost, if requested at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting. To obtain services call the City Recorder at (503) 829-6855. 

________________________ 
 
1,004th Regular Meeting 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Flag Salute. 
B. Roll Call. 
C. Approval of Minutes: September 26, 2012 

 
2. COMMUNICATIONS 

A. August 16, 2012 Library Advisory Board Staff Report and Minutes  
B. September 25, 2012 Transportation Advisory Board Minutes 

 
3. AWARDS & RECOGNITIONS 

 
 

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 



October 10, 2012                                                 Molalla City Council Agenda—Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 
5. CONTINUING BUSINESS 

A. Review and Accept Warrant Register for September, 2012 
B. Review and Accept Financial Statements for September 2012 
C. Review and Discussion of SDC Reconciliation and Plan for Correction 
D. Discussion and Motion to Award Contract for Asset Management Counsulting Services 
 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 
7. ORDINANCES 
 

 
8. RESOLUTIONS 
 
 
9. PROCLAMATIONS 

 
 

10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
A. City Manager Report 
B. Upcoming Council Agenda Items 

a. Report and Discussion of Noise Complaints 
b. Resolution Approving Contract for Asset Management Consulting Firm 
c. Resolution Approving Contract for IT Services 
d. Annexation Ordinance 
e. Telecommunication Franchise Ordinance 
f. Ordinance Adopting PGE Frnachise Renewal 
g. Stone Place Reimbursement Agreement 
h. Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan Updates 
i. Credit Card Use Policy 
j. GIS Mapping Tech/Planner Position 
k. City Grants Policy  
l. Council Goals – Revisit 
m. Accessability of Vulnerable Populations to Safeway 

 
 
11. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla Adult Center  

315 Kennel Avenue, Molalla Oregon 97038 
Wednesday, September 26, 2012 7:00PM 

 

Page 1 of 7 
 

ATTENDANCE 1,003ST REGULAR MEETING: Mayor Mike Clarke, Present; Councilor 
Stephen Clark, Present; Councilor George Pottle, Present; Councilor Jimmy Thompson, Present; 
Councilor Dennis Wolfe, Present; Councilor Jim Needham, Present; Council President Debbie 
Rogge, Present.  
 
STAFF IN-ATTENDANCE: City Manager, Ellen Barnes; City Recorder, Sadie Cramer; 
Finance Director, Heather Penni; Community Services Director, Melissa Georgesen, Public 
Works Director, Marc Howatt.    

MINUTES 
 
Approval of Council minutes of July 11, 2012; July 25, 2012; August 22,2012; September 12, 
2012.  Rogge made the motion to approve all minutes presented with minor corrections. Wolfe 
seconded. Motion carried 6-1. Needham voted nay for the reason he believes the minutes are not 
in compliance with the Molalla Municipal Code. 
  
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
WRITTEN – INFORMATIONAL ONLY 
 
Molalla Arts Commission minutes of Sepetember 10, 2012. No discussion.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
LAND USE APPLICATION FOR A PLAN/ZONE CHANGE FROM PUBLIC SEMI-PUBLIC 
TO MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL AT 370 METZLER AVENUE 
 
Mayor Clarke closed the public session and entered into a public hearing. Clarke read opening 
statements and hearings adopted rules. (Exhibit “A” added to the agenda packet)  
 
Mayor Clarke called for disclosure of any council exparte contact. Needham stated that he was 
on the School Board at the time the property was declared as surplus. He stated that would not 
affect his ability to vote on the issue.  
 
Clarke called for any challenge of the exparte contact disclosed. None was heard.  
 
Clarke asked for the staff report. Barnes reviewed the staff report enclosed in the agenda packet 
and briefly reviewed its contents and goals.  
 
Clarke asked the public and applicant Jason Philips if he has any additional testimony in favor of 
the application. None was heard.  
 
 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla Adult Center  

315 Kennel Avenue, Molalla Oregon 97038 
Wednesday, September 26, 2012 7:00PM 

 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Clarke called for any public testimony against the application. None was heard so no rebuttal 
was necessary.  
 
Needham asked which comprehensive code the application would follow. Barnes stated it would 
be the 1980 comprehensive plan.  
 
Clarke closed the public hearing and entered back into regular session.  
 
Needham made the motion to approve the proposed zone change. Rogge seconded. Motion 
passed unanimously 7-0.  
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
APPROVE LIQUOR LICENSE FOR C’EST LA VIE COFFEE 
 
ORS 471.166(1) requires that recommendations for a liquor licenses must be approved by City 
Council. This facility was the drive thru coffee shop and no alcohol will be served through the 
drive thru. The application is sufficient.  
 
No discussion. Rogge made the motion to approve the OLCC application. Thompson seconded. 
Motion carried unanimously 7-0.   
 
DISCUSSION WITH MOLALLA FIRE DISTRICT ABOUT FIRE SIREN 
 
City staff and Councilors have received complaints from citizens about use of the fire siren.  
Council during the September 12, 2012 council workshop directed staff to add this topic as an 
agenda item and invite representatives from Molalla Fire District to discuss the matter. 
 
Chief Stafford from Molalla Fire Department informed the Council that they have discontinued 
use of the siren due to system malfunctions. It will be continued during the noon siren and in the 
event when the signal towers go down so volunteers can respond. Signal loss is a rare occasion 
but it does happen. Reliable notification devices (cell phones, radios and pagers) are in place but 
inside large dense facilities the signals are limited or lost. New building codes require a business 
to install 800mz antennas so signals can be received.  This was a fair compromise by Council 
consensus. No further discussion.  
 
Molalla Arts Commission Appointment 
 
According to City Charter the authority to appoint members of boards, commissions and 
committees is vested with the Mayor, with consent of council.   



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla Adult Center  

315 Kennel Avenue, Molalla Oregon 97038 
Wednesday, September 26, 2012 7:00PM 

 

Page 3 of 7 
 

Chapter 2.17 of the Molalla Municipal Code establishes and describes the Molalla Arts 
Commission.  The Molalla Arts Commission consists of nine members.  New members serve 
terms of three years. The appointment is supported by the Molalla Arts Commission members. 

Rogge made the motion to approve the recommendation and appoint Daral Lynn to MAC. Wolfe 
seconded. Motion carried unanimously 7-0.  
 
DISPOSAL OF KENNEL AVENUE RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT SPOILS 
 
To efficiently manage project waste and as an act of community good will, the City of Molalla 
agreed to give the Molalla Buckeroo Association the spoils (dirt and debris) removed from the 
Kennel Avenue reconstruction project.  The spoils are being used by the Buckeroo to construct 
berms on Buckeroo property to help address issues of noise generated from Buckeroo events.   
 
The City was storing the spoils on city property adjacent to the Buckeroo to facilitate access to 
the material.  There was never any intent on the part of the City for this to be long-term or 
permanent spoils storage.  The City has ceased delivering spoils to this location.   
 
The contractor now hauls the spoils to another site, where the City is charged a per load fee. The 
Buckeroo has received permits from the County to construct the berms and is ready to proceed 
with moving the material to their property. 
 
Howatt reported they accumilacated 1100 cubic yards on a city lot and was redirected by the City 
Manager on what to do with the spoils. He is unsure what the cause of redirection was, 
regardless, it forced him to break his word to the person the arrangments were made with to 
receive the spoils and a capitol improvement project has now been interupted because of these 
actions and that is problematic. It is negativly impacting his operational functions and impeding 
the ability to do his job. Howatt requested that brief discussion take place between staff and 
Council to figure out how to move forward on the project and how to avoid unnessary interfence 
on projects in the future.  
 
After discussion about timeline of spoil storage, cost savings, time savings and how the projects 
that the spoils were origionally intended  have been delayed, public comment was called for.  
 
Doug Sesney of Steelhead Street in Molalla addressed the Council about his concerns of the dirt 
(spoils) being stockpiled on a city lot right behind his property. In the past the spoils from other 
projects have affected the grades and his property and views negativly due to improper dirt 
distrubition once the project was done. He is concerned that this is going to happen again based 
on his observations and he is opposed to the spoils being stored in that location. He asked that 
the city stop placing them in that location and return the ground conditions back to its’ origional 
state.  
 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla Adult Center  

315 Kennel Avenue, Molalla Oregon 97038 
Wednesday, September 26, 2012 7:00PM 

 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Howatt stated it is on a city lot and the spoils will be removed and the city property will be left in 
as good or better condition then orgionally found. The spoils  should have been moved a week 
ago but due to interference that process has been prolonged. He has walked the property and he 
cant forsee any drainage issues but is unaware of what is under the berry briers. Sesney stated 
there was a small trench. Howatt said that they will look at that when they  remove the dirt since 
the spoils placement is only temproary.  
 
Clark stated he had 2 basic question he brought up to staff around July 30, 2012. To date he 
stated he has not received a firm awnser from staff. He dosent understand or see why the soil has 
to be stored at that location and not on the property of the Buckeroo to support their sound 
barrier projects. 
 

1. Why are we storing the spoils on that piece of city property?  
2.  If the spoils are for the Buckeroo why is the dirt not being store on their property?  

 
Howatt stated that he had a phone conversation when making the arrangments for the spoils, it 
was his understanding that due to several large events taking place at the Buckeroo grounds over 
the summer placement of the spoils on their grounds would disrupt those events. In consideration 
of that Howatt agreed to store the spoils on the city lot just next to them.  
 
Clark asked if we can make it publicly noted of where the spoils are going to be disposed of 
when a project comes before Council for approval. Howatt stated it will not be noted in the bid 
document. It’s part of his job duties to decipher. If the city were to permenatly place the spoils  
then the location would be noted.  
 
After brief discussion between staff and council regarding how the disclosure of information 
regarding spoils placement could be done, responses given to concerned Council memebers and 
Council roles; Needham called a point of order and stated that there is paralasis occuring due to 
recent activities that has taken several staff hours to address and feels this is a violation of 
Council roles.  
 
Thompson asked Howatt if any action needs to be taken tonight to fix the issue. Howatt stated no 
Council action is needed however as a governing body he needs the council to let him do his job 
and not interfere with construction projects at a operational level. The dirt should be removed 
within 2 weeks.  
 
Grant Sharp a representative of the Molalla Buckeroo addressed the Council that due to 
complaints and calls to the county changed the permits and the amount of dirt that can be moved 
has been reduced by 2/3rds. That reduction will slow the MBA down of creating sound barries to 
help with complaints relating to noise being conveyed during events.  
 
Sharp said that there are 7 steps to the permitting process that can take up to 5 days each which 
could have impeded the functionings of the events at the MBA. This project has been going on 
for months and full disclosures of what was taking place were provided.  



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla Adult Center  

315 Kennel Avenue, Molalla Oregon 97038 
Wednesday, September 26, 2012 7:00PM 

 

Page 5 of 7 
 

TOWN HALL MEETING – SENIOR CENTER SERVICES 
 
City staff is beginning to analyze the delivery of services to Molalla’s senior population.  Not 
only can we not financially sustain the senior program as is, we also are concerned that we may 
not be meeting the needs of Molalla seniors.   
 
To explore this topic further, we believe it is necessary to engage in a larger community dialog to 
share the data we see, gather additional information, hear citizen ideas and discuss suggestions 
and thoughts for meeting community needs. Brief discussion between Needham and staff 
regarding volunteers and fundraising took place. He is concerned about those items and hopes 
these items will be addressed at the upcoming Town Hall.  
 
Barnes stated that we need to provided services to the Senior Community and the Molalla Adult 
Center is the solution but we might be asking the wrong question, perhaps we need to look at if 
we are meeting the needs of the seniors in the community. Barnes stated for every $1 received 
from the county we pay $3. A tentative date has been set for October 17, 2012 at the Molalla 
Adult Center per Council consensus.  
 
ORDINANCES  
 
EXTENDING THE FRANCHISE GRANTED TO PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC 
COMPANY (PGE). 
 
The City is negotiating with PGE to renew the franchise agreement.  The franchise agreement 
with PGE was scheduled to expire on June 1, 2012.  To prevent any disruption in service in 
Molalla and enable the parties to continue negotiations, PGE and the City agreed to extend the 
existing franchise agreement through September 30, 2012.   
 
An initial extension was adopted at the May 23, 2012 via Ordinance 2012-09.    PGE and the 
City agree to a second franchise extension to enable time to come to agreement.    
 
Thompson made the motion to read by title only Ordinance 2012-12. Clark seconded 
Thompson’s motion. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Needham asked for discussion. He asked why the negotiations are taking so long and what could 
happen if the franchise expires. Barnes stated that the city attorneys have been working on this 
item for a prolonged amount of time. The current extension will expire on September 30, 2012. 
If it expires that can be a legal issue and since there are 2 parties trying to reach an agreement 
can take time.  
 
Needham made the motion to have a second reading by title only of Ordinance 2012-12. Clark 
seconded. Motion carried unanimously.  
 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla Adult Center  

315 Kennel Avenue, Molalla Oregon 97038 
Wednesday, September 26, 2012 7:00PM 

 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Needham made the motion to approve the Ordinance 2012-12. Wolfe seconded. Motion carried 
unanimously 7-0.  
 
REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
CITY MANAGER REPORT – ELLEN BARNES 
 
Barnes reported: 
  

• She’s contacted (LGPI) Local Government Personal Institute to find out about 
contracting labor negotiation services for the upcoming year.  

• She will be attending training for the Leauge of Oregon Cities, IIMA and Clackamas 
County C-4 in the next couple of weeks.  

• Staff is working on proposals for assest management and information technology.  
• The election candidate background results can be found online or at City Hall.  
• Working with the city’s insurance company regarding a possible tort claim. 
• A appeal regarding the decision for the Hart Street Project has been filed with LUBA. 
• A trial date has been set for the dog bite incident that took place at the library on 

November 13th – 15th.  
• She is working on the hazard mitigation plan. Changes have been sent to the county to 

begin the approval process in order to bring the item to Council at a later date.  
• Building/development projects are moving forward for O’Rielly Auto Parts and NW 

Polymers.  
• Concerns about building code violations are being received and she is working with 

Clackamas County to refine and confirm the process. A memo or contract will be 
presented to Council at a later date.  

• The city owes Clackamas County $8,000 for outstanding fees and she is working on 
negotiating re-payment. 

• She attended the ODOT STIP funding that is available for transportaion projects in 
region 1. 

• She has just received the population projects from Glasgow from Clackamas County and 
will be reviewing that report. When the forecasts are completed we can move forward on 
finalizing the new comprehensive plan. They should finalize those numbers in January 
2013.   

 
STAFF 
 
Penni asked the Council and public in attendance to spread the word about the community Town 
Hall and encourage attendance. The Molalla Library is now open on Sundays from Noon to 5pm.  
 
Georgenson shared that the Parks and Rec board did not have a quaorm in attendance. No 
meeting was held and no minutes submitted.  
 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla Adult Center  

315 Kennel Avenue, Molalla Oregon 97038 
Wednesday, September 26, 2012 7:00PM 

 

Page 7 of 7 
 

MAYOR/COUNCILORS  
 
Needham asked about the status of the Transportation Enhancement Grant. Barnes stated that is 
was denied and no projects in Clackamas County that were submitted were funded. He attended 
a infomative education summit and invited the public to attend the upcoming Livability Summit 
on October 11th at the Nazarene Church from 5PM to 9PM. 
 
UPCOMING COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 
 

• Stone Place Reimbursement Agreement 
• SDC Correction Plan 
• PGE Franchise Renewal 
• Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
• Credit Card Use Policy 
• Telecommunicaiton Franchise Ordinance 
• GIS Mapping Tech/Planner Position 
• City Grants Policy  
• Council Goals – Revisit 
• Accessability of Vulnerable Populations to Safeway 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Thompson made the motion to adjourn at 8:13pm. Clark seconded. Motion carried unanimously 
7-0.  
 
 
 
___________________________________  ________________________________ 
City Recorder, Sadie Cramer    Mayor, Mike Clarke 

 

 



Library Board Meeting – Staff Report – August 16th, 2012 

Library Activities – 

Summer Reading has officially ended.  Children may pick up their free books and other prizes until 
September 1st.  We had a total of 581 children participating in the summer reading program this year. 

Thursday, August 23rd from 2-4 pm.  There will be a teen/adult craft day, Huichol String and Yarn art. 

Monday, August 27th at 5:30pm there will be a teen/adult movie night.  “Hunger Games” which is rated 
PG-13 will be playing. 

Thursday, September 13th will be an author talks featuring local authors. 

Storytime will be back beginning September 20th & 21st at 10:30 in the library conference room. 

Jennifer, our intern from last year, will be continuing the young adult/adult book discussion group.  She 
is doing this on a volunteer basis. 

Upcoming events being planned for the fall included a homeschooling workshop on October 8th, musical 
evening on November 5th, Friends of the library book sale third weekend in October. 

Old Business – 

We have posted an opening for a part-time bi-lingual librarian.  So far interest in the position has been 
disappointing.  We may have to reconsider the job description and post the job again. 

The dog bite trial has been postponed again to November 13th, 2012. 

We have submitted the grant application for the Ready to Read grant.  We will be receiving $3,145 next 
year.  The money will be used to help provide the summer reading program for 2013 here at the library. 

New Business – 

The library will be opening on Sundays beginning September 23rd.  The hours will be noon until 5pm. 

I am sending Michelle Satyna, assistant director to the “2012 Focus on Children and Young Adults 
Institute” on September 16-19.  The institute is located in Corbett, Oregon this year. 

We are looking into providing first aid and CPR training for the staff.  This is one of the trainings that we 
are to provide according to OSHA.  We are currently not in compliance.  We are considering closing one 
morning to provide the training for this staff. 

Becky Jones new email address is jackand2012@gmail.com.  Please change it in your address book. 

Rotary has requested that I purchase 30 early chapter books for them to donate to the library.  I have 
submitted the order so they should arrive in week. 

I am beginning to work on the annual Statistical Report which I have to submit every September. 

 

 

mailto:jackand2012@gmail.com


Molalla Library Advisory Board 

Meeting Date:   8-16-2012 

Meeting brought to order by Sandy Nelson, Chairperson, at 6:00 P.M. 

Members Present:  Sandy Nelson, Mary Gilson, Angela Patton, Becky Jones, Jim  
                                    Needham 
 
Staff Present:  Glenda Triebwasser  
 
The minutes from the July meeting were approved as read. 
 

• Staff Report:  
(Ask Glenda for her notes, August 16, 2012, if you haven’t read them.) 
a) During our September meeting we will revisit the Internet Policy because with the 

library now having WIFI, there are some new issues.  People can sit out in the parking lot 
of the library after hours and use their laptops.  Some folks are concerned and feel that 
the WIFI needs to be turned off when the library closes for the day.  Glenda has not 
noticed any problems in the parking lot itself, such as garbage or litter or crowds of 
vehicles.  The library requires a Parental Permission form for children using internet. 

   
• Old Business: 

a) A few changes were suggested for the By-Laws.  Sandy will show us the suggested 
changes at our September meeting.  They deal with the following topics:  Administration 
(Article II), Membership (Article III), and Duties of the Board Members (Section 2). 

b) We need to find out if Claude Hawks submitted his resignation to the City Council.  Then 
we can go ahead and add a new member to the Board. 

c) Jim reminded us of the Ad Hoc Committee once again being formed to work on a new 
Molalla Center in collaboration with the Ford Institute.  Sandy’s application has been 
submitted and found again. 
   

• New Business: 
a) As Superintendent Tony Mann had a conflict and was unable to attend our August 

meeting, we have invited him to attend our meeting in September. 
b) We are changing our meeting time to 6:30 P.M. so all Board members will be able to get 

to the library in a timely manner.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:12 P.M.  
The next meeting is scheduled for September 20, 2012. 
 Submitted by Mary Gilson, Secretary. 
                
                
 
 
 
  



TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COUNCIL 

MEETING 

Tuesday, September 25, 2012 
6:00 PM 

City Hall Conference Room 

Agenda 

I. Call to Order 

II. Establish Quorum 

III. Approval of Last Meeting’s Minutes 

IV. Chairperson’s Report 

V. Old Business 

a. Transportation Priorities 

i. Molalla Industrial Access  

ii. City Street Projects- focus on 5 year CIP 

iii. Various other street projects 

b. Surface Transportation Program Updates (Marc Howatt) 

c. Funding Available for New Infrastructure (Marc Howatt) 

d. Transportation Strategic Plan & Possible District (Marc Howatt & 

Mike Bezner?) 

VI. New Business 

a. Grange & Center Street repairs (Town Hall discussion) 

b. Other new business 

VII. Calendar (Next Meeting) 

VIII. Adjournment 

   



TAC Committee for the City of Molalla 

Minutes from August 28, 2012 
Meeting brought to order at 6:08 p.m., Molalla City Hall 

 

Attendees:  Fred and Lynda Countrymen, Jim Needham,  

Jim Taylor, Mike Bezner,  

Jake Burrows (audience) 

Marc Howatt  

 

Approval of Minutes From July TAC 

 Meeting called to order by chairperson Countrymen (6:08 p.m.) 
 Accepted with revisions.  Fred motioned, and a second followed.  

 

Chair Countrymen opened with no new news to report other than to ask about a 

review on the DEQ report related to the Floragon property south of town, and 

had anyone else in the room read the report.  Chair Countrymen commented that 

the report reflected that the contaminants and studies done on site had no real 

findings, fact or otherwise to substantiate that there was anything unsafe on this 

property. 

Discussion started about access to Floragon site on a transportation concept 

within the group.  Mr. Taylor commented that it has always been problematic for 

ingress/egress to the site.  Mr. Taylor and Mr. Bezner entered into a discussion 

about the MFR, scope of work, feasibility study that is still out there to be 

completed.  Mr. Taylor talked about negotiations between NW 

Polymers/Foristall and land use for the properties west side of town.  Mr. Taylor 

commented on the huge benefits for opening up MFR, for tourists, local traffic, 

and vitality for the city.  Mr. Taylor thanked Mr. Bezner for Mr. Bezners’ work on 

the feasibility scope of work for MFR.   

     The group then entered a short discussion over grants, ROW widths, truck 

access, signaling, etc.  Mr. Taylor mentioned that this issue of MFR has been 

ignored for too many years. 

Mr. Bezner brought up the federal bill out there right now for highway projects 

available for agencies to apply for and how the bill sprawls out to all types of 

roadway projects. 

Gone are the days of the TE grant application process or specific enhancement 

type of highway projects.  This new bill doesn’t discriminate on these types of 

improvement projects, Mr. Bezner explained. 

     Jake Burrows asked about zone designations related to the Hart Metzler 



project. 

Discussion followed about a traffic study performed on Hart Street 

Development, and was it done or not.  PW Director informed the group that a 

traffic study had not been performed related to the Hart Street Development. 

More discussion of planning/transportation planning followed, and it was 

explained to the group by Mr. Bezner that when land use planning and 

transportation planning aren’t evaluated together as a “married” concept, it 

always turns out badly for development. 

Discussion turned to the city’s strategic transportation plan.  PW Director stated 

that he’ll dig up what the city has done with it to date. 

If it is somewhat intact then Chair Countrymen noted that it would be a good 

foundation for the city to utilize for transportation discussions.   

MFR surfaced again in conversation.  Mr. Bezner stated that not all of MFR is in 

city limits.  Some of MFR is in the county. 

The group discussed Mr. Avison’s e‐ mail on the one –way concept for 

downtown bypass.  The committee decided to table it for now but not to ignore it 

forever.   

(Tabled indefinitely) 

 

The group discussed the comprehensive plan and the discrepancies within it 

regarding population versus real census in the plan. 

Mr. Taylor explained that the wedge was really driven between the county and 

the former city manager city when that plan came back not approved. 

Mr. Taylor also re‐iterated to finish the grant application on MFR. 

 

Mr. Bezner asks the group “what are the priorities for transportation needs 

within the city”?    He then explained that when we have them identified we tell 

or dictate to the county what our priorities are, not the other way around.   

 

Questions came up about the Troy Vest development and the LUBA ruling.  Did 

he win or not?  No one at the table was aware of the outcome of LUBA on this.   

 

Mr. Taylor went back to MFR feasibility study and stated he has the wherewithal 

to stick it out and make it happen.  He talked about estimates for the project 

submitted in the past, some as high at 15 million dollars, etc.   

Mr. Taylor stated “prioritize these things like the MFR feasibility study and let 

the chips fall “   

 

The group discussed their function as a committee.  Through group discussion 

they verified that they do in fact, advise our city council on transportation 



matters.   

 

Currently the group will focus on 3 main priorities: 

 

# 1 ‐ Molalla Industrial Access  

#2 ‐ City Street Projects‐ focus on 5 year CIP (Robbins, next candidate) 

#3 ‐ Various other street projects (nature trail install from Safeway to Industrial 

Way was pulled off of this list at the last minute) 

 

The group discussed a transportation district, and that it would be much better 

than anything else to help the city.   

 

Move to adjourn at 7:26 p.m. 

Second followed, meetings adjourn at 7:26 p.m. 

 

         

Next Meeting 

September 25, 2012 at 6:00 PM, City Hall.  Molalla, Oregon    

 



 



City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: New Business 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBMITTED BY: Ellen Barnes, City Manager 
  
    

ALL AGENDA ITEMS MUST BE SUBMITTED BY NOON THE  
THURSDAY BEFORE THE SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING.  
LATE ITEMS WILL BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY MANAGER 
FOR CONSIDERATION.  City Recorder Use Only 
                                                
 

Subject: Review and Accept Warrant Register for September 2012 

 

 Recommendation: Review and Motion to Award Warrant Register 

 

Date of Meeting to be Presented: October 10, 2012 

 
Fiscal Impact:   none 

Background:  During the January 4, 2012 City Council meeting staff recommended and 
Council approved implementing a process for Council to review and approve the City’s 
warrant register each month.   

 
 

Agenda Item  

6.A 
 
 

































City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: New Business 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
SUBMITTED BY:   Ellen Barnes, City Manager 
    

ALL AGENDA ITEMS MUST BE SUBMITTED BY NOON THE  
THURSDAY BEFORE THE SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING.  
LATE ITEMS WILL BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY MANAGER 
FOR CONSIDERATION.  City Recorder Use Only                                               

Subject: Review and Accept Financial Statements for September 2012 
 

 Recommendation:  Discussion and Motion to Accept Statements 
 

Date of Meeting to be Presented: October 10, 2012 

 
Fiscal Impact:   NA 

Background:    
 
This is a review of the City’s FY2012-13 financial activity through August 2012 for each fund 
in the budget. 
 
Beginning fund balances are unaudited at this time.  These amounts may change with year-
end audit adjusting entries.   

Agenda Item  

6.B 
 





















































City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: New Business 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
SUBMITTED BY:   Ellen Barnes, City Manager 
    

ALL AGENDA ITEMS MUST BE SUBMITTED BY NOON THE  
THURSDAY BEFORE THE SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING.  
LATE ITEMS WILL BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY MANAGER 
FOR CONSIDERATION.  City Recorder Use Only                                               

Subject: Review and Discussion of SDC Reconciliation and Plan for Correction 
 

 Recommendation:  Discussion 
 

Date of Meeting to be Presented: October 10, 2012 

 
Fiscal Impact:   see staff report to Council 

Background:    
At the February 8th council meeting, Council directed staff to engage Acuity Group for 
accounting review services.  The focus of the review will be to attempt to reconcile 
accounting irregularities and investigate whether any misappropriation of City assets could 
have occurred.  Acuity Group began their investigation of the City’s records on March 12, 
2012.  Ms. Tiffany Couch from Acuity Group was on site reviewing city records from 
Monday March 12, 2012 through Friday March 16, 2012.  She presented a preliminary report 
to Council during the March 14, 2012 meeting whereby she indicated that she did not see acts 
of fraud or malfeasance, but said that she had concerns regarding the city’s accounting and 
use of SDC funds.  Ms. Couch identified approximately $2.5 million in suspected misspent 
SDC funds.  City staff and the City Attorney have been working with Ms. Couch to reconcile 
her findings with city records.  The resulting staff report to Council follows for review and 
discussion. 

Agenda Item  

6.C 
 



Page 1 of 3 
 

City of Molalla  
Systems Development Charge (SDC) 
Reconciliation and Plan for Correction 
SDC Findings 
Prior to 2009, System Development Charge (SDC) revenues and expenditures were not accounted for 
separately, as is required by state statute (ORS 223.311).  SDCs were comingled with other revenues 
(grant funding, loan proceeds, etc.) and expenditures in capital improvement funds.  The city had five 
capital improvement funds associated with each of the city’s five utilities (water, sewer, storm water, 
streets, and parks).  These funds were used to account for all capital improvement activities in the city, 
including SDC eligible projects. 

In 2009, the City established dedicated funds to account for SDC revenues and expenditures separate 
from other capital project funding.  Five SDC funds were created, one for each utility (water, sewer, 
storm water, streets, and parks).   Journal entries were used to move revenues from the capital 
improvement funds into the newly created SDC funds.  There is no documentation supporting the 
journal entries.  There is no explanation indicating how it was determined how much to move from the 
capital improvement funds to establish the SDC funds.   

A recent forensic financial investigation reviewed SDC expenditures made by the City between 2000 and 
2011.  The investigation revealed a suspected mis-expenditure of approximately $2.5 million in SDC 
funds.  A significant portion of these funds were spent on capital projects in the city, which occurred at 
more than five years ago.  However, the accountant could not correlate those projects to capital 
improvement plans associated with any of the city’s SDC methodologies.  According to state statute, to 
use SDC funding, a project must be identified in a capital improvement plan included in an adopted SDC 
methodology (ORS 223.307).   

State statute permits cities, at any time, to update the capital improvement plans associated with SDC 
methodologies to include new projects eligible for SDC funding (ORS 223.309).  For unknown reasons, 
the city never actively maintained its capital improvement plans associated with the SDC methodologies 
to reflect changes in community needs.   

Of the $2.5 million in suspected misspent SDC funding, the forensic accountant determined that 
approximately $2.2 million was spent on capital improvement projects within the community that likely 
would have been eligible for SDC funding but for an administrative oversight of not amending the capital 
improvement plans to include the projects in the relevant SDC methodologies.   

Table 1 shows the reconciliation between the city’s audited SDC fund balances as of 6/30/2012 and the 
proposed SDC fund balances identified by the forensic accountant.  Row 3 shows the suspected 
misspent SDC funds identified by the forensic accountant.   Row 4 shows SDC funds spent on capital 



Page 2 of 3 
 

projects that likely would have been eligible for SDC funding but were not amended to the relevant SDC 
methodologies.   

Table 1: SDC Fund Balance Reconciliation 
  Storm 

Water Water Sewer Parks Street Total 

1 SDC Fund Balances per City Audit 
6/30/2012 $141,008 $1,033,977 $379,009 $32,219 $167,546 $1,753,759 

2 Proposed SDC Fund Balances per 
Forensic Audit 6/30/2012 $350,852 $1,539,120 ($76,942) $498,705 $1,941,634 $4,253,369 

3 Difference  ($209,844) ($505,143) $455,951 ($466,486) ($1,774,088) ($2,499,610) 

4 
SDC Funds Spent on Capital 
Projects Eligible for SDC Funding 
but Not Amended to a SDC 
Methodology 

($208,355) ($190,107) $0 ($6,616) ($1,841,286) ($2,246,364) 

5 Reconciled Adjusted SDC Fund 
Balances 6/30/2012 $142,497 $1,349,013 $(76,942) $492,089 $100,348 $2,007,005 

6 Revised Difference ($1,489) ($315,036) $455,951 ($459,870) $67,198 ($253,246) 

 
Line 6 of Table 1 shows the amount of SDC funds that need to be replaced in total and for each of the 
SDC funds.   The sewer and street SDC funds indicate revenues in excess of what should be reported in 
each of those funds.  Because of the lack of adequate documentation (due to the fact that in accordance 
with state record retention laws these documents have long since been destroyed), the city is unable to 
explain why these funds show revenues in excess of what was discovered during the forensic financial 
investigation.  It is believed too much revenue was moved from the capital improvement funds and 
allocated to these funds when these SDC funds were established.     

 

Plan for Correction 
Staff proposes a two-step plan for correction.  First, the city needs to reconcile the existing SDC funds so 
that the funds accurately reflect the amount of money that should exist in each fund.  Second, the City 
needs to update its SDC methodologies and capital improvement plans in order to avoid making errors 
similar to those described above. 

Reconciling each SDC fund will include both repayment of misspent SDC money from non-SDC funds and 
rebalancing each fund to accurately reflect the balances that should have existed on 6/30/2011.  As 
outlined in Table 2, this will be accomplished as follows: 

1. Repayment of a $175,000 interfund loan from the General Fund to the Water SDC Fund has 
been budgeted (part in FY 2011/12 and in 2012/13) and will be repaid in full by June 30, 2013.  

2. The city believes the excess revenues discovered in the sewer and streets SDC funds are SDC 
revenues that were not classified into the correct SDC funds in 2009.  Without documentation, 
the city cannot determine which funds should have received these revenues.  These revenues 
will be redistributed to balance the other SDC funds. 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Table 2: SDC Fund Corrections 
  Storm 

Water Water Sewer Parks Street Total 

1 SDC Fund Balances per City Audit 
6/30/2012 ( Table 1, line) $141,008 $1,033,977 $379,009 $32,219 $167,546 $1,753,759 

2 Reconciled Adjusted SDC Fund 
Balances 6/30/2012 (Table 1, line 5) $142,497 $1,349,013 ($76,942) $492,089 $100,348 $2,007,005 

3 Amount to Correct (Table 1, line 6) ($1,489) ($315,036) $455,951 ($459,870) $67,198 ($253,246) 

4 Repayment of Interfund Loan  $175,000    $175,000 

5 Journal Entries to Balance SDC Funds $1,489 $140,036 ($379,009) $304,682 ($67,198) $0 

6 Corrected SDC Balances $142,497 $1,349,013 $0 $336,901 $100,348 $1,928,759 

7 Amount Remaining to be Paid Back $0 $0 $0 $155,188 $0  

 
As indicated in line 7 of Table 2, this proposed plan corrects for a $76,942 deficit discovered by the 
forensic accountant as the 6/30/2011 ending fund balance in the Sewer SDC Fund and leaves $155,188 
remaining in the Parks SDC Fund that needs to be repaid.    

State statue (ORS 223.302) requires that misspent SDC funds must be repaid within one year of a 
determination that the funds were misspent.  The General Fund will be responsible for repayment of 
$155,188 to the Parks SDC Fund.  Staff will provide proposals for making this repayment as part of a 
supplemental budget process for this fiscal year, as part of the budget proposal for next fiscal year, or a 
combination of both. 

City staff also has begun the process needed to update the city’s existing SDC methodologies and capital 
improvement plans.  It is staff’s belief that by doing so, and continuing to do so on a regular basis, that 
the city will be able to avoid similar issues in the future.  The first step in this process is for the city to 
contract with an asset management consulting firm to complete a capital asset inventory for the city.  
City staff has interviewed prospective firms and are prepared to recommend one of those firms to 
Council to approve award of a service contract.  After the asset inventory is complete, then the city can 
proceed with updating capital improvement plans and the SDC methodologies.  Staff anticipates 
completing updates to capital improvement plans and awarding a contract for updating SDC 
methodologies in spring of 2013. 

 

 

 



City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: New Business 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
SUBMITTED BY:   Ellen Barnes, City Manager 
    

ALL AGENDA ITEMS MUST BE SUBMITTED BY NOON THE  
THURSDAY BEFORE THE SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING.  
LATE ITEMS WILL BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY MANAGER 
FOR CONSIDERATION.  City Recorder Use Only                                               

Subject: Review and Motion to Award Contract for Asset Management Consulting 
Services 

 

 Recommendation:  Discussion and Motion to Award Contract 
 

Date of Meeting to be Presented: October 10, 2012 

 
Fiscal Impact:   approximately $20,000 to $40,000 

Background:    
To meet the GASB #34 requirement (criteria relating to the form and content of governmental 
financial statements) the city needs to complete and maintain a capital asset inventory.  The 
city currently does not have such an inventory.  The city auditors cannot give us an 
unqualified audit without an inventory of our capital assets.  Also, the capital asset inventory 
is needed to complete city capital improvement plans and to update the city’s SDC 
methodologies.  

Agenda Item  

6.D 
 



What is the GASB? 
The GASB is the independent private sector organization, formed in 1984, that establishes and 
improves financial accounting and reporting standards for state and local governments. Its 
seven members are drawn from the Board's diverse constituency, including preparers and 
auditors of state and local government financial statements, users of those statements, and 
members of the academic community. 
 
The mission of the GASB is to establish and improve standards of state and local governmental 
accounting and financial reporting that will result in useful information for users of financial 
reports and guide and educate the public, including issuers, auditors, and users of those 
financial reports. 
 
What is GASB Statement #34? 
GASB Statement #34 establishes new criteria on the form and content of governmental 
financial statements. GASB Chairman Tom L. Allen called Statement 34 "the most significant 
change in the history of governmental accounting. It represents a dramatic shift in the way 
state and local governments present financial information to the public." 
 
Under the new model, anyone with an interest in public finance—citizens, the media, bond 
raters, creditors, legislators, and others—will have more and easier-to-understand information 
about their governments.  
Among the major innovations of Statement 34, governments will: 

• Report on the overall state of the government's financial health, not just its individual 
"funds". 

• Provide the most complete information ever available about the cost of delivering 
services to their citizens. 

• Include, for the first time, information about the government's public infrastructure 
assets—such as bridges, public buildings/property, roads, and public works 
infastructure. 

• Prepare an introductory narrative section analyzing the government's financial 
 performance. 
 
Completion of a capital asset evaluation is necessary to: 

a. Present a complete non-qualified audit. 
b. Maintain an asset list for inventory / accounting. 
c. Assist in data for preparation for the capital improvement plan. 
d. Needed for SDC methodologies. 

 



                     AssetWorks Professional Asset Solutions 
   

Table of Contents 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

February 1, 2011 

PPrrooppoossaall  ttoo  PPrroovviiddee    
PPrrooffeessssiioonnaall  AAsssseett  IInnvveennttoorryy  &&  VVaalluuaattiioonn  SSeerrvviicceess    

  
ttoo::  

  

TThhee  CCiittyy  ooff  MMoollaallllaa  OOrreeggoonn 
 
 
 
 

Offered by: 
 
 

 
 
 

Submitted by: 
Mr. David E. Middendorf, MS, ASA, ARM-P 

20055 SW Pacific Highway, Suite 107 
Sherwood, Oregon 97140 

503-925-8770 phone 
503-925-8776 fax 

david.middendorf@assetworks.com 
 

October 2, 2012 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Office Locations 

 
East 
Pittsburgh, PA 
Philadelphia, PA 
New York, NY 
Delmar, NY 
Atlanta, GA 
Miami, FL 
 
West 
Los Angeles, CA 
San Diego, CA 
Oakland, CA 
Portland, OR 
Denver, CO 
 
Central 
Dallas, TX 
Chicago, IL 
Minneapolis, MN 
Milwaukee, WI 

 

  IIInnnnnnooovvvaaatttiiivvveee   SSSooollluuutttiiiooonnnsss...      AAAccccccuuurrraaattteee   VVVaaallluuuaaatttiiiooonnnsss...   
   

 

mailto:david.middendorf@assetworks.com


                     AssetWorks Professional Asset Solutions 
   

Letter of Transmittal 

 
October 2, 2012 
 
Ms. Heather Penni 
Finance Director 
City of Molalla 
117 N. Molalla Avenue 
Molalla, OR 97038 

Re: Asset Inventory & Reporting Services 
 
Dear Ms. Penni: 
 
I appreciate the time spent meeting with you, Marc and Ellen to discuss the issues the City is 
having with asset management and the dialogue built to address these issues.  Based on our 
discussion and the subsequent infrastructure information provided, I am pleased to provide 
this proposal for comprehensive Asset Inventory Services. These services are to be provided 
in order to develop compliant reporting of capitalized and critical assets.  The resulting reports 
will be prepared in a GASB 34 and GAAP compliant format, providing the City with the 
ability to perpetuate the data for future use and compliancy efforts. 
 

AssetWorks is uniquely qualified to provide asset inventory services to the City of Molalla with 
a history of success in projects of this type across the country for more than 20 years.  Our 
innovative solutions and customized project plans have brought us to the forefront across the 
nation in terms of quality and customer satisfaction.  We invite you to join us as a partner in 
implementing and maintaining proper stewardship of your real and personal property assets. 

 

I, David Middendorf, will be the primary point of contact for this project and if I can be of 
any assistance, please contact me directly at 800-450-1198, 503-201-9537 or 
david.middendorf@asssetworks.com. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
David Middendorf, ASA, ARM-P, MRICS 
Vice President of Development, AssetWorks, Inc. 
20055 SW Pacific Highway, Suite 107 
Sherwood, OR 97140 
503-925-8770 
503-925-8776 fax 
david.middendorf@assetworks.com 
http://www.assetworks.com

http://www.assetworks.com/


                     AssetWorks Professional Asset Solutions 
   

Table of Contents 

 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

1. Executive Summary………………………………………………..Page 1  

2. AssetWorks Qualifications & Experience.………………………..Page 2  

3. Project Scope & Approach……………………………………….…Page 3 

4. Onsite Services & Procedures……………………………………...Page 4  

5. Methodology for Establishing Values……………………………...Page 5  

6. Timeline of Activities………………….……………………………Page 5  

7. Deliverables Process..………………………………….………..…..Page 6 

8. Terms & Conditions…………………………………………………Page 7 

9. Fees & Authorization…..…..………………………………………..Page 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                     AssetWorks Professional Asset Solutions 
   

 

1 

1.   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
You can confidently select AssetWorks, Inc. as your partner to conduct your Asset 
Inventory Service for the following reasons: 
 

 We have been in the business of property appraisals for 20 years and have the reputation 
of being the “best of class” provider.  We are already a trusted partner with municipalities 
across the United States who have utilized our appraisal services in years past. 

 Our project team consists of full-time employees who are associated with the 
American society of Appraisers (ASA).  Our team specializes in providing asset 
inventory services for accounting reporting and compliancy efforts. 

 We have successfully provided property valuation and appraisal services for more than 
5,000 entities across the United States, Europe, and Puerto Rico. 

 

 Quality, communication and resulting customer satisfaction are our hallmarks. 
 

 AssetWorks, Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Constellation 
Software, Inc., an international provider of market leading software and 

services to industries across both the public and private sectors. The organization has more 
than 2,200 employees and is publicly traded on the TSX under the symbol CSU.  CSI's 2008 
consolidated revenues exceeded US $330 million.   
 

AssetWorks offers asset valuation solutions that embrace all aspects 
of capital asset and real property tracking, valuation and reporting.  

Our innovative solutions help organizations to vastly improve their asset management and 
tracking programs, insurance and accounting compliancy, generate detailed and customized 
reports, and much more.  Maintaining a strong presence in the Western Region with offices 
in Los Angeles, San Diego, Oakland, Portland and Denver, AssetWorks has the experience, 
capacity and local presence to provide efficient and timely professional asset services. 

AssetWorks’ revenue is derived as follows: 

 

   

FY2009 - 96% Public Sector
Private/Other -
4%

Public - 96%

 

  Insurance Services 
  Accounting Services 
  Asset Hardware 
  Asset Software 

 
 
 
 



                     AssetWorks Professional Asset Solutions 
   

 

2 

 

2.   ASSETWORKS QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE 

To ensure mutual success, AssetWorks designates an empowered contact person who also 
serves as your Partnership Manager. 
 
Mr. David Middendorf is the designated contact person who is authorized to contract for 
AssetWorks.  He is also the designated AssetWorks Partnership Manager for this project. 

 

Mr. Middendorf is well qualified to serve as the Partnership Manager.  
He is a current Vice President and a former Lead Appraiser with 
AssetWorks.  His tenure at AssetWorks has included regional project 
management, the design, planning, and execution of numerous 
property appraisals and capital asset accounting studies for school 
districts municipalities, and various other public sector entities. 

 
The administration aspect of this project will be headquartered from our Portland Area office with 
the onsite project team also being based out of our Oregon offices, comprised of: 

Vice President of Operations – Mr. Gary Soucek 
Mr. Soucek has been serving public entities for over 30 years, specializing in 
asset valuation and compliancy projects across the country.  He is the top 
appraiser in our organization and have dedicated him to lead this project 
along with Mr. Jackson Stahl, ASA (Sherwood, Oregon). 
 

Data Collection Specialist – Mr. Jackson Stahl, ASA – Sherwood, OR 
Mr. Stahl has been serving our clients since 1998 and is a seasoned asset 
inventory project specialist.  He has worked alongside Ms. Hou for many 
years and has managed numerous similar projects for municipalities.   

Quality Control Review – Ms. Sandra Hou, ASA – Los Angeles, CA 
Ms. Hou is our Western Region Operations Manager and has attained the 
ASA designation, the highest available in the industry.  Her experience has 
included asset inventory projects across the country, including serving as the 
Project Manager for CityCounty Insurance Services project in Oregon. 
 

Lead Data Processor – Mr. Brett Johnson – Los Angeles, CA 
Mr. Johnson has been serving our clients since 1991 and is known as 
“Commander Data” within the organization due to his significant ability to 
accommodate complex data systems.. 

The Partnership Manager 
ensures that a true partnership 
develops with the recognition 
that neither party can be 
successful if the other is not. 

The AssetWorks Team 
performing the onsite 
asset inventory have all 
undergone background 
checks and fingerprinting 
by the Dept of Justice and 
are in compliancy with 
Code 45125.1.  Each team 
member will wear a badge 
stating this, including a 
photo to fully identify by 
face and name. 



                     AssetWorks Professional Asset Solutions 
   

 

3 

 
3.   PROJECT SCOPE & APPROACH 

 

Project Scope 
The scope of this project is focused on the proper stewardship of City assets as well as the 
compliancy requirements of GASB Statement 34.  This includes the identification of assets/property 
as well as the determination of historical costs.  Additionally, identifying depreciable lives and 
calculation of accumulated and annual depreciations will take place followed by reporting in a format 
that is both useable and compliant.  Data will be provided in both hard copy and electronic formats 
suitable for Springbrook or other software system upload.  An additional focal point will be the 
reconciliation of assets using the current City database as a baseline for the inventory efforts.   
 

Project Work Plan 
Client Staff Expectations 
AssetWorks believes that clients retain our services with the expectation that AssetWorks staff, as 
paid professionals and consultants, will perform the necessary tasks in a high quality manning to 
successfully complete the project on time.  We do, of course, view our clients as active participants 
and anticipate their assistance with the following: 
 

 Pre-Project Planning and Announcement – AssetWorks will identify key items to 
have prepared for the project kickoff meeting.  We ask that you prepare a memo for 
staff members to announce the project and give the general purpose and time frame. 
 

 Access to All Sites – AssetWorks appraisers will be granted access to all sites and 
buildings based on a mutually agreed upon appraisal schedule. 
 

 Asset Interrupt – We ask that the City pause any incoming/outgoing asset activity 
during this project. 

 

Project ‘Kickoff’ Meeting 
Our project team will hold a comprehensive project-planning meeting with City representatives prior 
to the commencement of onsite fieldwork.  We advise that members of the administrative staff, 
purchasing, warehouse, facilities or other directly involved personnel attend this meeting.  Topics of 
discussion include confirmation of project scope and deliverable time frames, the physical inventory 
schedule, accessibility to buildings, and contacts for each building or location.  This meeting lays the 
foundation for the methods and procedures used during the onsite fieldwork. 
 
Fieldwork ‘Closeout’ Meeting 
Upon completion of the on-site investigation, the AssetWorks project manager will conduct a final 
closeout meeting with the City liaison.  The focus is to ensure that all sites and properties have been 
accounted for and to answer any questions that may exist.  This is also the time at which City staff 
should ensure that they have transferred all client supplied data to the project manager. 



                     AssetWorks Professional Asset Solutions 
   

 

4 

4.   ONSITE SERVICES & PROCEDURES 

Machinery, Furniture & Equipment 
 

A detailed inspection and field inventory will be conducted at all buildings, identifying each capital 
asset by location, building and room.  All assets included in our inventory and appraisal will be 
recorded and categorized by major account.  This segregation of items will assist in reporting asset 
valuation totals for capital asset reporting formats.  Our appraisers will utilize hand held computers 
equipped with laser scanners to document the required information for each asset where available: 

a.   Asset Identification Number i.   Building 
b. Description j.   Site/Location 
c. Quantity k.  Room/Sublocation 
d. Acquisition Date l.   Cost Information 
e. Manufacturer m. Funding Source (Grant Assets) 
f. Model n.  Department 
g. Serial Number o.  Asset Classification 
h.   Asset Account     p.  Miscellaneous (e.g. old tag #) 

AssetWorks appraisers will apply bar code tags assets where no tag exists and enter the tag numbers 
along with all the corresponding asset information into the database.  Our base fee includes the cost 
of all tags necessary for the inventory and may use existing City tags if that is preferred. 

Control Assets – Assets with an original cost more than $500 or more, and having an estimated 
useful life of two years or greater will be inventoried and identified in reports, inclusive of all assets.   

Capital Assets – All assets with an original unit cost of $5,000 or more, and having an estimated 
useful life of two years or greater will be inventoried and identified individually and capitalized in the 
resulting reports and data.  These reports are provided in order to comply with GASB Statement 34. 
 

Buildings, Land & Infrastructure 

Assets within these classifications are reportable under GASB 34 guidelines and as a result, existing 
asset information will be utilized as they exist, depreciated and included in the final reports.  This will 
provide a more complete and auditable product for the City to utilize.  Our recent investigation of 
the City buildings for CIS provides valuable data for the ‘buildings’ class of assets.  We will transfer 
all building entries that currently exist for the City as stated above, but for any buildings that we 
reviewed for CIS that don’t exist in the City database, we will apply that information and valuation to 
ensure these buildings are now accounted for.  This will bring about an even more comprehensive 
and complete database of assets for the City.  For recent land and infrastructure assets that need 
implementation into the database, we ask that the City provide historical cost, dates and descriptions 
where possible.  Where that information does not exist, AssetWorks will perform the research needed 
to incorporate a comprehensive reporting of real property owned by the City. 
 



                     AssetWorks Professional Asset Solutions 
   

 

5 

 

5.  METHODOLOGY FOR ESTABLISHING VALUES 

Our investigation of each property will follow generally accepted appraisal techniques and valuations 
in accordance with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP).  This 
includes the use of various research sources to develop the cost conclusions for each building.  
Sources include price lists, trade journals, industry publications, technical and pricing subscription 
services, internet sources and inquiries with local producers as well as direct cost research.  Assets 
are depreciated on a straight-line basis.   
 

 

The Direct Costing method will be used where historical data is readily available from City 
records.  The actual purchase cost and acquisition date will be maintained for those assets by 
utilizing the current Oracle database as a baseline of data. 

The Standard Costing is used when inventoried assets not reconciled to a historical record 
receive an estimated cost, where possible, based upon a standard cost (a known average 
installed cost for a like unit) at the estimated acquisition date.   

The Normal Costing method will be used where no historical information is readily 
available.  These assets will be valued on a current basis and back-trended to an estimated 
date of acquisition to estimate the original cost.  During the costing and valuation procedures, 
all items will be assigned a useful life.  The useful life of an item will determine its 
approximate replacement year. 

 

6.  TIMELINE OF ACTIVITIES (TO BE DETERMINED) 
. 

AssetWorks’ automated approach and depth of experienced staff qualify us to complete all phases of 
this project in a timely fashion.  Upon receipt of your authorization, AssetWorks will arrange a 
‘Kickoff Meeting’ with the City along with the transition of data in preparation for the project. 
 

ID

1

2

3

4

5

6

Task Name

Project Award

Project Preparation

Onsite Fieldwork

Offsite Valuations

Data Formatting & Review

Preliminary Reports Delivery

Start Date

3/1/2011

3/2/2011

3/28/2011

4/18/2011

5/9/2011

5/23/2011

End Date

3/1/2011

3/25/2011

4/15/2011

5/6/2011

5/20/2011

5/27/2011

1d

18d

15d

15d

10d

5d

March April May

2011
Duration

 



                     AssetWorks Professional Asset Solutions 
   

 

6 

7.   DELIVERABLES PROCESS 

Reconciliation Process 
Upon completion of the onsite fieldwork and offsite valuations, a data match comparing the existing 
current City database to the database of information recorded during the onsite fieldwork will occur 
resulting in the following electronic .pdf reports: 

 

 Inventoried Assets – “Matches” 
 Exceptions Assets – “Not Found” 
 Additional Assets – “New Assets” 

Quality control is implemented during this stage through project manager assets review in 
coordination with the lead data processor to ensure all assets are allocated into the 
applicable category.  This occurs on two levels utilizing the asset and inventory experience 
of the onsite project manager as well as the technology employed by the lead processor. 

 
 

Preliminary Reports  
Based upon the reconciliation process, draft summary and detail reports will be sent to the City 
via email in .pdf format for review.  We provide two weeks (or more as requested) to determine 
acceptability of the final data.  Though we do not expect changes to occur at this time, this gives 
a final opportunity to fine tune the data and make adjustments prior to hard copy reports 
preparation and electronic database distribution to the City. 

 
 

Final Reports 
Upon acceptance of preliminary reports, AssetWorks will immediately prepare and deliver final 
reports in electronic and hard-copy format.   

 
 Hard Copy Reports 

 

Includes: 1) Certification Letter 
2) Accounting Summary 

  3) Accounting Detail 
  4) Depreciation Reports 
  5) Additional Reports (As requested by the City) 
   

 Electronic Reports on CD 
 

Includes: 1) .pdf Files of all Hard Copy Reports 
2) Excel File of Reports Data 
 

 AssetMaxx Upload & User Access Enabled 



                     AssetWorks Professional Asset Solutions 
   

 

7 

 
8.  ASSETMAXX (Provided at no added cost for the first year) 

 

AssetMAXXTM Web-Based Property Management System 

We are pleased to offer AssetMAXX, a web-based program allowing public entities to securely maintain, 
collect, and retrieve property and asset data over the internet.  Easy asset maintenance and overall system 
navigation are the cornerstones of the AssetMAXX design.  AssetMAXX has a general look and feel that 
users are accustomed to when using the web and is the most comprehensive and flexible property 
management tool available in the industry.  Because AssetMAXX is a web-based solution, it provides users 
with significant advantages over traditional client-server or stand-alone software: 

• AssetMAXX avoids the need for the large capital outlay associated with software 
purchases.  

• Users access the application over the world wide web, eliminating the added 
internal need for costly hardware and time consuming maintenance. 

• Application and data are housed on AssetWorks’ hardware at the AssetWorks 
data center.  This ensures that the system is always optimally configured.   

AssetMAXX encompasses all areas of capital asset and real property tracking and reporting to include: 

• Fast, Reliable and Easy Access to Data 
• Secure Server Location and Administration 
• Secure Authentication, Data Encryption and User Log for Accountability 
• Supports Unlimited Number of Users 
• Multiple Levels of Security and Access Permissions 
• Digital Photo Interface 
• GASB 34 Compliant Features and Reports 
• Both Standard and Ad Hoc Reporting Features 
• Supports Multiple Depreciation Methods and Capitalization Levels 
• Data Import and Export Capabilities 

The AssetMAXX pricing schedule is subscription based.  Users pay a fixed annual fee of $1,500, 
which provides them with access to their database.  The fee includes: 

 24 hour access to AssetMAXX 
 All license and maintenance fees 
 Unlimited help desk support 
 Automated trending of values 

All system maintenance (database administration, network maintenance, etc…) 
 

Free Online Demo available at www.assetmaxx.com 



                     AssetWorks Professional Asset Solutions 
   

 

8 

 
 
 

9.   TERMS & CONDITIONS 

 
1) AssetWorks shall provide guidance in determining the data required for purposes of the 

contemplated services.  The City agrees to provide all data specifically requested, including 
documentation and information to AssetWorks in a timely manner.  AssetWorks shall 
assume without incurring liability therefore, that all data so provided is correct and complete. 

2) In the event that the City provides additional and/or corrected data, documentation and 
information at a later date, AssetWorks’ efforts with respect to such additional and/or 
corrected data, documentation and information shall be deemed additional services and 
compensated in addition to the fees set forth herein based on applicable hours, professional 
fees and expenses. 

3) The City acknowledges project completion upon delivery of final reports. 

4) The fees proposed in this contract are valid for a period of 90 days. 

5) To the extent a claim is not covered by the required insurance, each party agrees that each 
party’s total liability for any and all damages whatsoever arising out of or in any way related 
to this Agreement from any cause, including but not limited to negligence, errors, omissions, 
strict liability, breach of contract or breach of warranty shall not, in the aggregate, exceed the 
total amount of this Agreement.  To the extent a claim is covered by the required insurance, 
each party’s total liability will be limited to the amount of required insurance. 

6) The City and AssetWorks shall each retain ownership of, and all right, title and interest in 
and to, their respective pre-existing Intellectual Property, and no license therein, whether 
express or implied, is granted by this Agreement or as a result of the Services performed 
hereunder.  To the extent the parties wish to grant to the other rights or interests in pre-
existing Intellectual Property, separate license agreements on mutually acceptable terms will 
be executed. 

7) AssetWorks will invoice for 70% of fees during the fieldwork portion of the project with the 
final contract amount invoiced with our final reports 
. 
 

 

 
 
 



                     AssetWorks Professional Asset Solutions 
   

 

9 

 

9.   FEES & AUTHORIZATION 
 

Please return a copy of this executed agreement to the attention of the undersigned via fax at 
503-925-8776 and the original project fees page mailed back to this office.  All professional fees 
outlined below are in US Dollars and include out-of-pocket expenses.  The TOTAL investment 
is as follows: 
 
 
 
 

Professional Services Fees                

Asset Inventory & GASB 34 Reporting Services -  $ 36,980 

  Asset Inclusions –  Machinery & Equipment 

     Buildings & Structures 

     Land Improvements 

     Infrastructure 

     Land Parcels 

     Licensed Vehicles 

  Perpetuation Option – AssetMaxx Web Application 

 
 

RESPECTFULLY OFFERED BY: ACCEPTED BY: 

AssetWorks, Inc. City of Molalla, Oregon 

     _    ______                                                                                  
David E. Middendorf, ASA, ARM-P   Signature 
Vice President 
AssetWorks, Inc.           
        Name 
Date: October 2, 2012 

            
       Title 
 
             
       Date 
 
 
 
*If the City would like deliverables in a 100% electronic   

format, please indicate so by initialing the box: 
 





















Redmond Town Center 

7525 166
th
 Ave. NE., Suite D-215 

Redmond, Washington 98052 

T: 425.867.1802  F: 425.867.1937 

225 Bush Street 

Suite 1825 

San Francisco, California 94104 

T: 415.445.8947 F: 415.398.1601 

4380 SW Macadam Avenue 

Suite 220 

Portland, Oregon 97239 

T: 503.841.6543 F: 503.841.6573 

 

 

 

  

October 3, 2012 

 

Heather Penni, Finance Director 

City of Molalla 

117 N. Molalla Avenue 

Molalla, OR 97038 

 

Subject:  Proposed Asset Valuation Project 

 

Dear Ms. Penni: 

This letter contains a proposed scope of work and budget for an asset valuation project for the City of 

Molalla, based on my recent meeting with you and Ellen Barnes and Marc Howatt. 

Background 

My understanding is that the City needs consulting assistance in the development of an inventory and 

depreciation schedules for the City’s fixed assets. The inventory should contain both estimated 

historical costs and estimated reproduction costs for all City-owned fixed assets, along with expected 

useful life, annual depreciation, and an estimate of accumulated depreciation as of the end of fiscal 

year 2011-12.  

There are four purposes for this inventory. 

1. A fixed asset inventory is needed in order to be in compliance with Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles. The City’s auditors have indicated that this is a requirement for a clean 

audit opinion. Without at least an estimate of original costs, annual depreciation, and 

accumulated depreciation to date, the City’s accounting books are incomplete. 

2. An inventory that includes accumulated depreciation is one useful source of input in the 

development of an updated capital improvement program (CIP). 

3. An estimate of original costs is necessary to have a legal basis for updated systems 

development charges (SDCs). 

4. Estimated reproduction costs are also needed for the City’s property insurance. 

Because in the past the City has not maintained historical cost records for fixed assets, developing an 

inventory at this point will require a large amount of cost estimating, which is one of the primary 

purposes of this proposed contract.  

If follow-up consulting services are needed after the fixed asset inventory is built—particularly in 

updating the City’s SDCs—FCS GROUP would be able to provide that analytical support. 

Qualifications 

We propose to carry out this scope of work with a team drawn from three consulting firms: FCS 

GROUP as the prime contractor, 3J Consulting as a subcontractor focusing on infrastructure assets, 

and Architectural Cost Consultants (ACC) as a subcontractor focusing on buildings.   



 

www.fcsgroup.com 

FCS GROUP is a leading consulting firm providing financial and management analysis to local 

governments. Since 1988, we have delivered high-quality financial analysis in over 1,800 

engagements to over 425 cities, counties, and other local governments across the western U.S. We 

have offices in Portland, San Francisco, and Redmond, Washington. One of the core areas of our 

practice has been the development of legally defensible SDCs. We have also performed a wide variety 

of cost-of-service and rate studies, long-term financial plans, utility appraisals, and similar analyses. 

I have been a project manager for the firm for over five years. Previously I worked for over 20 years 

in budget and financial management positions within city governments, including as Financial 

Manager for the City of Portland Parks & Recreation and as Assistant Finance Director for the City of 

Bellevue, Washington. Since joining FCS GROUP in 2007, I have concentrated on three main areas 

of expertise: cost of service and rate studies for utilities and other local government services, utility 

valuations and acquisitions, and financial management practices. I’ll attach my resume to this letter.  

In our proposed scope of work, I would be responsible for overseeing the overall project. In a project 

like this, there is a significant role for City Public Works staff in identifying the assets so they can be 

subject to a cost estimate. Part of my role would be make sure that the information provided by City 

staff is adequate for the engineers and architectural estimators to be able to provide reproduction cost 

estimates. I would also serve as a general problem-solver and “fill in the gaps” person, performing 

research needed to estimate the cost of certain specialized types of assets that are beyond the expertise 

of engineers and architects—library books, for example, or equipment in an aquatics center. Much of 

the expertise that qualifies me to do this work has come from my experience doing utility appraisals, 

which are largely based on asset cost. But much of it also comes from my long experience inside City 

finance departments, gaining a broad knowledge of City operations and the types of facilities and 

equipment necessary to provide municipal services. For some of the spreadsheet analysis, including 

creating depreciation schedules, I will rely on Tage Aaker, an Analyst with FCS GROUP who reports 

to me. I have worked with Tage on several projects over the past year. He is a quick study and very 

handy with a spreadsheet. 

The primary subconsultant on this team is 3J Consulting, an engineering and land use planning firm 

based in Beaverton, headed by John Howorth. We will rely on 3J Consulting’s engineering expertise 

to provide reproduction cost estimates of the water system, sewer system, storm drainage system, 

street system, parking lots and paved areas, and parks system. (“Reproduction cost” estimates are 

similar to “replacement cost” estimates. Replacement costs assume existing conditions, while 

reproduction costs assume “green field” conditions. For instance, in order to replace a sewer pipe 

under a street, you would have to dig up the street and then replace the street afterwards. However, the 

cost of reproducing that sewer pipe assumes just the initial construction of the pipe. In this project we 

are concerned with reproducing the original costs, in today’s dollars.) An overview of 3J Consulting 

and resumes of John and other key employees are attached to this letter. 

In addition, I plan to subcontract with Architectural Cost Consultants (ACC) for reproduction costs of 

the City’s buildings and furnishings. ACC has been providing cost-effective estimating services to 

Portland’s architectural community since 1988. The ACC principal in charge of this engagement 

would be Stan Pszczolkowski, who has helped lead ACC since 1994. Stan’s resume and a profile of 

ACC are also attached to this letter. 



 

www.fcsgroup.com 

Approach 

The estimates will not be extremely detailed or precise—often they will be rough estimates based on 

general cost indices or comparable purchases in other cities. In engineering terms, they will be “Class 

5” or “planning-level” estimates. However, our primary goal in this engagement will be to provide at 

least a reasonable basis for every cost estimate for every fixed asset owned by the City.  

Following are the major tasks that we envision for this project. 

Task 1: Data Collection and Project Coordination 

We will conduct a kickoff meeting in which all key members of the project team—including the City 

staff members—will discuss roles, tasks, and deadlines. This will include site visits to the major 

buildings and above-ground assets. 

I will create a format for the inventory and valuation estimates. We will depend on the City staff to 

identify the fixed assets owned by the City, their characteristics, and the approximate year when each 

fixed asset was placed in service. The system plans for water, sewer, storm drainage, streets, and parks 

already contain much information about existing assets, but that information might have to be 

updated, or more detail might be needed in order to prepare reproduction cost estimates. Generally, 

the people who maintain the systems will have the best knowledge of what things they are 

maintaining, and what the City maintains is the best clue about what the City owns.  

The more information that can be given about a given asset, the more accurately it can be evaluated. 

For example, if the pipe diameter and type of pipe (ductile iron vs. PVC, for example) is known, it 

should be identified for the 3J Consulting engineers. Otherwise, they will make assumptions based on 

the City’s Public Works Design Standards. For assets acquired in the past ten years, including most 

rolling stock and the re-constructed wastewater treatment plant, we will draw on the City’s accounting 

history as a starting point. However, the General Ledger accounting data might not identify individual 

assets very clearly—costs for some kinds of assets might be lumped in with other expenditures—so 

we might need to either receive guidance from the City staff or make assumptions. 

Task 2: Reproduction Costs - Infrastructure 

For Task 2, 3J Consulting will prepare planning-level estimates of the reproduction cost and expected 

useful life of the fixed assets in the City’s major infrastructure systems—water, wastewater, storm 

drainage, streets, parking lots and paved areas, and parks.  

Task 3: Reproduction Costs - Buildings 

For Task 3, the City staff will need to provide a detailed list of the components and specifications for 

each City-owned building, including the building shell for the water treatment plant and other utility 

structures. For instance, how many square feet of carpet, or carpet-tile, or tile? How many (and what 

type) plumbing fixtures? How many square feet of what kind of roof? How many (and what type) 

light fixtures? Someone on the staff will need to walk through each building with a tape measure and a 

checklist (which I will provide) in order to create these specifications. As part of my initial site visit, I 

will help with the walk-through of one of the buildings, but it is still a significant work element for the 

City staff. 



 

www.fcsgroup.com 

Based on these specifications, ACC will estimate the reproduction cost of each building and its 

furnishings. We will also make some broad assumptions about the expected useful life for the 

buildings and their components. 

Task 4: Valuation of Rolling Stock and Other Assets 

Task 4 consists of developing cost estimates for assets that are not buildings and not part of the major 

infrastructure systems. Both Public Works and Police maintain inventories of vehicles; we will 

compare those with cost data from the City’s accounting system to estimate the value of the rolling 

stock. Based on research with outside parties and also City staff, we will estimate the cost of library 

books and furnishings and Aquatic Center furnishings and equipment. (Both the Library and Aquatic 

Center buildings are owned by the School District; we are assuming that the building shell and major 

components are outside the scope of this project, but the furnishings and equipment are owned by the 

City.) For City-owned land, we will use some rough per-square-foot estimates that will be developed 

after reviewing County tax records and perhaps talking with one or more realtors in the area. We will 

rely on information from City staff and data from the accounting system in order to estimate the cost 

of computer and office equipment.  

Task 5: Depreciation Schedules and Documentation 

The final task includes converting reproduction costs into estimated original costs, subtracting 

inflation from today’s dollars to the assumed date when each asset was placed in service, using 

historical data from the Engineering-News Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index. Then, based on 

City-provided information about the approximate age of each asset, we will create a depreciation 

schedule that identifies annual depreciation on a straight-line basis and accumulated depreciation 

through the end of fiscal year 2011-12. In order to minimize the cost of this project, our 

documentation will very limited—mostly just a cover memo followed by a very long spreadsheet. The 

cover memo will describe the general methodology used for different types of assets, but there will 

not be a line-by-line description of the basis for each asset value. Instead, the key deliverable will be 

the inventory itself and depreciation schedule, which the City will then be able to maintain in future 

years through a year-end capitalization process. 

Cost 

Our proposed budget for this project would be $37,000. The attached spreadsheet breaks out the 

budget by task and subtask. Given the citywide scope of this effort, the City can allocate this cost 

across multiple funds. Hourly rates for all classifications are shown on the attached schedule. 

Schedule 

We expect to be able to start the project as soon as a contract is approved. At that point, we can 

schedule the kickoff meeting and initial site visit, and I will develop the format for the inventory. For 

this particular project, the City staff is a significant part of the team, and their part of the work occurs 

at the front end of the project. We can complete the inventory and depreciation schedule about 4-6 

weeks after receiving all of the inventory information from City staff, so it is possible that the work 

could be complete by the end of December. However, it would be prudent for the City to request a 

two-month extension on the filing of its 2011-12 financial statements in case this project is not 

completed until January 2013. 



 

www.fcsgroup.com 

 



 

www.fcsgroup.com 

Thanks for calling us about this engagement. I truly hope that we can be useful to the City. If you 

have further questions, give me a call at 425-867-1802, extension 224. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Gordon Wilson 

Project Manager 

 

Enclosures: Billable Hourly Rates 

 Gordon Wilson resume and project list 

 Architectural Cost Consultants: Company Profile and Resume of Stan Pszczolkowski 

3J Consulting: Company Overview and Resumes of Key Employees 



 

www.fcsgroup.com 



 

www.fcsgroup.com 

GORDON WILSON – PROJECT MANAGER 

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE – September 2012 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

www.fcsgroup.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACC | 8060 SW Pfaffle St., Suite 110 | Tigard, OR 97223 | 503.718.0075 | www.archcost.com 

Company Profile 
 

 Architectural Cost Consultants, LLC 

 

Architectural Cost Consultants was established in 1988 with the 

purpose of providing an effective tool for architects, owners and 

developers to monitor and control costs throughout the entire design 

process.  Stan Pszczolkowski, Principal, has been involved in the 

estimating component of the architectural field since 1977 and, with 

90 years combined experience in the architectural and estimating 

field, the ACC team uses their architectural training and background 

to build realistic, detailed cost models early in the design process.  

 

At ACC, we understand that the establishment of budgets and 

control of building costs during the programming and design phases 

of a project is an interactive process.  That’s why we work closely 

with designers, engineers, owners and contractors and encourage 

close scrutiny of estimates and validation of assumptions by all 

members of the project team.   

 

Detailed and easy-to-read cost estimates will prove to be important 

through the design development and construction document 

phases.  Stan will be principal-in-charge and project manager on 

your project, while he’ll work closely with the ACC team to ensure 

the most accurate estimate possible.  The ACC team provides 

detailed quantity take-offs and cost estimating for all divisions of the 

work (from landscape through electrical), using the most applicable 

take-off processes & software.   

 

Architectural Cost Consultants, LLC (ACC) is certified as an Equal 

Employment Opportunity employer with The City of Portland.  ACC 

is registered with the Secretary of State of Oregon, Corporation 

Division, registration # 610780-86.  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bio and Resume 
 

 Architectural Cost Consultants, LLC 

 

ACC | 8060 SW Pfaffle St., Suite 110 | Tigard, OR 97223 | 503.718.0075 | www.archcost.com 

Stanley J. Pszczolkowski 

Stan has been involved in estimating for over 35 years and brings a wealth 

of knowledge to each project.  He is a registered architect in 3 states and 

has been licensed for over 30 years.  Having been involved with almost 

every type of project, Stan has an in depth understanding of what it takes 

to deliver a comprehensive and accurate estimate while taking into account 

all aspects of the design, planning, and building process.  Stan works 

tirelessly with owners, architects, and developers to estimate and control 

costs at every phase of the design process, thus ensuring your costing 

experience is one of complete thoroughness and accuracy.  
 

Education     

Texas Tech University, 1977, Bachelor of Architecture 
 

Registration  

State of Oregon, 1982, #2396 

State of New York, 1986 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts, 1992 

 

Certifications    

NCARB, 1984 
 

Professional Experience   

Architectural Cost Consultants, LLC - Portland, OR 

 1994-Present, Principal 

KRI Management/Kennedy & Rossi Construction - Arlington, MA 

 1991-1994, Sr. Planner 

SAE Carlson Design Construct - Cochituate, MA 

 1990-1991, Chief Estimator 

Dimeo Construction - Providence, RI 

 1988-1990, Senior Planner       

Thorndike Construction/Development - Bainbridge, MA 

 1987-1988, Chief Estimator    

Skidmore, Owings & Merrill - New York, NY       

 1986-1987, Chief Estimator, Associate    



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bio and Resume 
 

 Architectural Cost Consultants, LLC 

 

ACC | 8060 SW Pfaffle St., Suite 110 | Tigard, OR 97223 | 503.718.0075 | www.archcost.com 

Emerick Construction- Portland, OR 

 1983-1986, Senior Estimator  

Skidmore, Owings & Merrill - Portland, OR 

 1977-1983, Chief Estimator, Associate   
      

Organizations  

American Institute of Architects



 

  
3J Consulting, Inc. 

3J	Consulting—Company	Overview	
Company Overview and Background 
3J ConsulƟng was incorporated as an "S" corporaƟon in 2009, by John Howorth, PE.  3J ConsulƟng is registered to do business in 
the state of Oregon (614780‐96) and is a registered emerging small business (#6424).  3J ConsulƟng is a professional engineering 
and land use planning firm that offers Civil Engineering, Water Resources, Land Use Planning, Program Management, Project 
Management, and ConstrucƟon Management.  3J has six full Ɵme dedicated staff members to provide high level experƟse and 
service on 3J's projects.  3J is conveniently located off of Canyon Road in Beaverton, Oregon with quick access to the City of Tigard 
and other locaƟons throughout the Portland metropolitan area.  3J has the management skills, technical capabiliƟes, and the 
resources available to complete any civil project, from iniƟal invesƟgaƟons to final compleƟon.  John Howorth, President is 
authorized to negoƟate contracts with the City and can be reached at (503) 946‐9365 or john.howorth@3j‐consulƟng.com. 
 
3J has an excellent record of project delivery, which is consistent, reliable, and cost‐effecƟve.  3J's team have more than 20 
combined years of Civil Engineering assessments, design, construcƟon, and project management.  3J has worked for both public 
and private clients providing us with experience in balancing the cost of improvements when designing built environments.  The 
project team for this contract will be co‐led by John Howorth , Brian Feeney, and Andrew Tull, depending upon the specific 
requirements of each individual project.  John, Brian, and Andrew's considerable experience with public works design, enƟtlement, 
and construcƟon will undoubtedly assist the City in the compleƟon of any of the upcoming projects.  A team organizaƟonal chart 
has been provided below: 
 
The team at 3J ConsulƟng have been directly involved in designing and managing the projects shown in the Respondent's 
CapabiliƟes secƟon of this proposal.  In addiƟon, John, Brian, and Andrew have worked on several other interesƟng and diverse 
projects that have all contributed to their ability to effecƟvely and efficiently manage not only the Civil and Land use scopes, but all 
aspects of the project.  Most recently, the 3J team has been involved in the design and delivery of several public infrastructure 
projects for the City of Amity and Independence, as well as parks, fields, and faciliƟes for TualaƟn Hills Park and RecreaƟon District.  
3J's teams also have recent experience working on projects with the Oregon Department of TransportaƟon, the City of Beaverton, 
several of the local school districts including the Tigard/TualaƟn School District as well as projects for several private developers 
and local businesses. 



 

  
3J Consulting, Inc. 

3J	Consulting—Key	Resumes	

John Howorth has 15 years of broad experience in civil works for both contractors and project owners 
on projects in Alaska, Arizona, California, Idaho, South Carolina, Oregon and Washington.  His 
construction experience includes cost estimating, scheduling, cost control, and management and 
administration for contractors.  His consulting engineering experience includes planning, design, and 
engineering management of projects for developers, public works agencies, school districts, and 
industrial building owners.  These projects have included water resources, marine, highway, green 
streets, utilities, bridges and land development, in addition to land use planning and landscape 
architecture assignments.  
 
John’s design expertise, broad range of experience, and proficiency in scheduling, estimating, cost 
tracking, and document management has been crucial to his success in managing engineering and 
construction projects.  He is skilled in using specialized scheduling software, such as Microsoft Project 
and Primavera, to provide real-time information from which to make project decisions. 
 
His success is a result of thinking first at a overview level, and giving his team a constant look at the 
overarching project goals, while remaining flexible for innovative improvements and continuing cost 
savings.  His aggressive approach to quality, on-time, under-budget work product, along with team 
building, focuses the team’s energies on the project objectives.  John employs advanced project 
management tools including detailed project scope documents, modified schedules, detailed work 
plans, detailed design schedules and close tracking of scope, quality, schedules, work accomplished, 
and budgets to achieve results.  He works with the project owner to evaluate cost-saving measures for 
both design and construction, while maintaining quality.  John applies this approach at different levels 
of detail from either a small pathway or a large public works project.  

Education:  
B.S. Civil Engineering, 
University of Idaho 
Years Experience: 15  
Licenses: PE  
Affiliations: 
American Society of 
Civil Engineers, Member 
(ASCE) 
American Council of 
Consulting Engineers, 
Member (ACEC) 
City of Tualatin 
Architectural Review 
Board, Member 
City of Tualatin Core 
Area Parking District 
Board, Member 
City of Tualatin TSP 
Task Force, Committee 
Member 
Home Builders 
Association, Member 
(HBA) 
Clackamas County 
Business Alliance, Board 
Member (CCBA) 

John Howorth, PE 
PRINCIPAL ENGINEER/OWNER 

Andrew Tull has more than 10 years of experience as an urban designer, land use planner, entitlement 
specialist, and project manager.  Andrew’s experience includes both design and statutory approvals for 
both private and public development projects throughout the western United States and internationally.  
His consulting experience includes planning design, entitlements, and management of projects for 
government agencies, special utility districts, and for private developers.  Andrew has worked on 
projects of all sizes including large scale multi-square mile master plans to small single family home 
sites.   
 
Andrew’s master planning experience and entitlement experience has given him a comprehensive 
understanding of the land planning process.  Andrew understands that the development of land requires 
a collaborative approach therefore he often works closely with the other disciplines including 
economists, other planners, wetland biologists, civil engineers, traffic engineers, geotechnical 
engineers, geologists, and arborists in support of exemplary planning efforts.   
 
Andrew is a skilled strategist when it comes to obtaining entitlements for projects.  Having the a good 
understanding of Oregon's planning system, several years experience on local government design 
review boards, and having close relationships with the engineers, has allowed Andrew to focus on the 
path of least resistance to obtaining difficult entitlements.  His approach, along with a carefully 
cultivated rapport with staff, allows Andrew an impressive success rate.   

Education:  
B.S. Horticulture, Kansas 
State University 
M.S. Landscape 
Architecture, Washington 
State University 
Years Experience: 10  
Affiliations: 
American Planning 
Association, Member  
Urban Land Institute 
Urban Development 
Institute 
Home Builders 
Association, Vice Chair 
Political Action 
Committee 

 

Andrew Tull 
PRINCIPAL LAND USE PLANNER/OWNER 



 

  
3J Consulting, Inc. 

Brian Feeney is a Project Manager with over 14 years of civil engineering experience with multi-
discipline consulting and development expertise.  He has extensive experience in public works projects 
from his early days as a public inspector at the City of Beaverton to the contract engineer for the City 
of Amity and Independence.  Brian has proven proficiencies in management, team coordination, client 
communication, and public involvement as it relates to public works projects.   
 
Brian is experienced in road improvements, downtown revitalization plans, water line replacement 
projects, storm drainage upsizing and replacements, sanitary sewer line upsizing and repair, street 
widening, public facilities upgrades such as parking lots, and other public works projects for several 
small municipalities in Oregon.  Brian assists the agencies with permitting of the projects, bidding, and 
construction management as the owner’s representative.  Brian has been instrumental in keeping the 
City of Independence’s current projects moving ahead despite City staff reductions. 
 
Brian also has extensive experience in managing the design, entitlement, permitting, bidding, and 
construction management of land development projects, specifically: retail/commercial, industrial/
office, mixed use, multi-family, franchise utility, LEED/sustainable design, and urban civil design 
projects for nationally and internationally recognized companies such as Kohl’s, Home Depot, and 
others.   
 
As the Civil Project Manager, Brian is involved from the project’s inception to completion, overseeing 
all phases of design, from the upfront feasibility of a project through project completion.  He 
thoroughly enjoys being a team player working closely with his clients on both large and small project 
seeing their vision turned into reality. 
  

Education:  
B.S. Civil Engineering, 
Portland State University 
Years Experience: 14  
Licenses: PE  
Affiliations: 
American Society of 
Civil Engineers, Member 
(ASCE) 
American Council of 
Consulting Engineers, 
Member (ACEC) 
American Public Works 
Association, Member 
Home Builders 
Association, Member 
(HBA) 
NAIOP Member 
 

Brian Feeney, PE 
CIVIL PROJECT MANAGER 

Jesse Emerson has 10 years of experience as a civil engineering designer working on private and public 
development projects throughout the western United States.  
 
Jesse is a Civil3D expert in grading, pipe networks, hydraulics, plan and profiles.  Jesse also is 
proficient in the use of WaterCAD, AutoTurn, and hydraulic modeling software such as XPSWMM. 
All of Jesse’s projects are reviewed in three dimensions to reduce and eliminate potential grade issues 
and if complex enough, clash detection throughout the storm drainage system, sanitary sewer system, 
and other utilities beneath the ground.  
    
Jesse’s responsibilities on a project include civil engineering design, construction administration 
support, infrastructure design, hydraulic modeling, custom site layout, grading, storm water drainage 
design, sanitary sewer design, and project coordination. He has the knowledge and experience to 
provide the economical, aesthetic and enduring designs required to turn concept into form.   
 
 

Education:  
B.S. Civil Engineering, 
University of Portland 
Years Experience: 10  
Licenses: PE  
Affiliations: 
American Society of 
Civil Engineers, Member 
(ASCE) 

 

Jesse Emerson, PE 
CIVIL ENGINEER 

3J	Consulting—Key	Resumes	



 

  
3J Consulting, Inc. 

Kathleen is a registered Professional Engineer and a Certified Floodplain Manager  with 3J Consulting.  
Kathleen merges the technical aspects of engineering with the vision of the client and successfully 
manages projects to meet deadlines and program budgets.  Kathleen produces floodplain and floodway 
delineations for bridge and culvert designs, and drainage hazard area delineations in accordance with 
the Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA) requirements which sets up the 
parameters of site design, programmatic limitations, and permitting requirements. 
 
Kathleen also provides technical support to the design team  by preparing comprehensive storm water 
management plans for new projects and helps prepare creative solutions for existing facilities to meet 
the current standards in water quality and detention.  
 
Kathleen researches all aspects of the storm water system for each project, including the upstream 
contributing areas and systems, downstream system and potential deficient areas, the site constraints 
and proposed development, and summarizes the detailed code requirements from the local 
agencies.  Finally, she prepares the necessary documents required by the local agencies which includes 
a list of solutions to handle the storm water for the project. This initial effort provides the framework 
for the design as it moves through the concept phase to completion.  
 
Kathleen's expertise involves the design of low impact storm water management systems, the 
preparation of watershed analysis including capacity analysis, modeling of channels and floodplain/
floodways, and downstream analyses. Kathleen is proficient in XP Software’s XPSWMM and she 
provided technical support to XP Software’s clients for two years.    Kathleen also is skilled in the use 
of Civil 3D, HEC-RAS, StormShed, and other storm water modeling software to meet the needs of the 
project team, jurisdiction, or agency. 
 
Kathleen’s responsibilities on a project include water resource engineering expertise and technical 
support in hydrology, hydraulic modeling, and storm water drainage design.    

Education:  
B.S. Environmental 
Engineering, Oregon 
State University 
Years Experience: 8  
Licenses: PE  
Affiliations: 
American Society of 
Civil Engineers, Member 
(ASCE) 
American Council of 
Consulting Engineers, 
Member (ACEC) 

Kathleen Freeman, PE, CFM 
WATER RESOURCES ENGINEER 

3J	Consulting—Key	Resumes	



 

  
3J Consulting, Inc. 

Portland Community College 

 Campus Wide UIC Retrofit Program 

 MulƟple Campus ADA Upgrades* 
 
Hillsboro School District 

 Jackson Elementary LEED EBOM CerƟficaƟon 

 Jacobson Road Permiƫng 

 Century Student Health Clinic 

 WL Henry Sanitary Sewer Extension 

 Poynter Middle School Drainage Improvements 

 Miller EducaƟonal Facility Lot ConsolidaƟon 

 Rosedale Elementary School—LEED Gold* 

 Quatama Elementary School* 

 Lincoln Street Elementary* 

 Free Orchards Elementary School* 

 South Meadows Elementary School* 

 Liberty High School AthleƟc Fields* 
 
North Clackamas School District 

 Rowe Middle School Pervious Parking Lot 

 Rowe Middle School Frontage Improvements* 

 Milwaukie High School Retaining Wall ModificaƟons* 

 Ardenwald Elementary School Offsite Improvements* 
 
*Denotes projects completed prior to  the formaƟon of 3J 
or by staff members prior to joining 3J ConsulƟng.  

3J	Consulting—Public	Works	Projects	

Projects with Government Agencies: 
 
City of Independence 

 North Riverside Park Public Works Improvements 

 Independence Air Park Storm Study 

 Independence Civic Center* 

 Downtown RevitalizaƟon Phase II* 

 F Street Bridge Public Improvements* 
 
City of Amity 

 Wastewater Treatment Plant Phase 2 Improvements 

 Downtown Phase II Improvements 

 Downtown Phase I Improvements* 

 2010 Waterline Replacement Project 
 
City of Oregon City 

 South End Concept Plan 

 2010 Small Works Projects* 

 City Hall Parking Lot RenovaƟons* 
 
City of Beaverton 

 Hocken Bridge Replacement & Beaverton Creek 
Enhancement* 

 Murray Boulevard: 143rd Ave. to Cornell Rd. IntersecƟon* 
 
City of Portland 

 Police Training Facility 
 
Washington County 

 Cornelius Pass Road: Baseline to Aloclek* 
 
Multnomah County 

 Cornelius Pass Road: Safety Study AlternaƟves 
 
Oregon Department of TransportaƟon 

 Cornelius Pass RouƟng AlternaƟves Analysis 

 Region 3 Bridge Replacement Hydraulic Analysis* 
 
TualaƟn Hills Park and RecreaƟon District (THPRD) 

 Graf Meadow Trail Improvement Project 

 Aloha Swim Center Pervious Concrete Parking Lot 

 Sunset Swim Center Pervious Concrete Parking Lot 

 Portland Timbers PracƟce Facility 

 New OperaƟons & Maintenance Center 

 Rock Creek RecreaƟon Center Waterless/Vaulted 
Restrooms 

 Waterhouse Trail Crossing @ Walker 

 North Fanno Creek Trail Extension 

 McMillan Park Culvert Removal & Stream RestoraƟon 

 Matrix Hill Park Rock Fall Fence Extension 
 
 
 


	Agenda 101012
	Minutes 092612 - Draft
	Library Board Meeting - Staff Report - August 16th, 2012
	Library Advisory Board Mtg. - 08-16-2012
	Transportation Advisory Council Meeting - 09-25-2012
	AB Review September Warrant Register
	September Warrant Register
	AB September Financials
	September Financial Statements
	AB SDC Discussion
	Molalla - Final SDC report to Council
	SDC Findings
	Plan for Correction

	AB Asset Management Services
	What is the GASB
	Asset Works Asset Management Scope
	Re: Asset Inventory & Reporting Services

	McLeod Asset Inventory Scope
	Molalla Asset Valuation scope of work
	City of Molalla - 3J Consulting

